
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE  
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

December 6, 2004 – 9:00 AM  
COMMISSIONER’S MEETING ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Gus Andrews, Chairman 

Frank Tadlock, Vice-Chairman 
Steve Blount, Member 

Chad Mitchell, Member 
Leda Belk, Member 

 
County Manager Tim Russell, Clerk to the Board Rita Foil, County Attorney 
John Holshouser and Finance Director Leslie Heidrick were also present. 
 
Chairman Andrews called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  Commissioner 
Mitchell provided the Invocation and Commissioner Belk led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Chairman Andrews asked the Board to bring forth any old business to be 
discussed.   
 
There being no old business, Chairman Andrew then asked for a motion to 
approve the minutes of the November 15, 2004 Open Session meeting and the 
November 15, 2004 Closed Session meeting. 
  
Commissioner Blount made a motion to approve the minutes of the 
November 15, 2004 Open Session minutes.  Commissioner Tadlock seconded 
and the motion passed unanimously. 
  
Commissioner Belk made a motion approve the Closed Session minutes of the 
November 15, 2004 meeting.  Commissioner Blount seconded and the motion 
passed unanimously. 



 
Chairman Andrews then adjourned the meeting. 
 
County Manager Tim Russell asked Commissioners Gus Andrews and Leda 
Belk to take a seat with their families in the audience. 
 
OATH OF OFFICE TO NEW BOARD MEMBERS: 
 
Mr. Russell asked newly elected Commissioners Arnold Chamberlain and 
Jim Sides to come forward. 
 
Mr. Russell introduced the Honorable Judge Larry Ford, Senior Resident 
Superior Court Judge for Rowan County, who administered the Oath of Office 
to newly elected Board members Arnold Chamberlain and Jim Sides. 
 
After the Oath of Office, Mr. Russell presented Commissioners Arnold 
Chamberlain and Jim Sides with the official County Commissioner lapel pin, 
which was placed on their lapel by their wives. 
 
Commissioner Jim Sides then addressed the audience with prepared 
comments concerning his election, his beliefs and his promise to represent all 
citizens of Rowan County with honesty and integrity.  
 
Commissioner Arnold Chamberlain stated to the audience that he was in 
better health than two years ago and thanked all those in attendance, 
including his family and Pastor.   
 
SELECTION OF A CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN: 
 
Mr. Russell called the meeting to order of the Rowan County Board of 
Commissioners for the selection of a Chairman and Vice-Chairman. 
 
Chairman: 
Mr. Russell presided over the selection of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for 
the Board.  He first opened the floor for nominations for Chairman and 
announced that no second was required. 
 
Commissioner Sides stated that he had received the most votes for county 
commissioner in the election and historically the normal practice was for the 
top vote getter to be selected as chairman.  Commissioner Sides withdrew his 
name from consideration and nominated Arnold Chamberlain for Chairman 
of the Board. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain nominated Commissioner Tadlock for Chairman.   

 2



 
There being no further nominations, Commissioner Mitchell moved to close 
the nominations, followed by a second from Commissioner Blount.  The 
motion was approved unanimously.   
 
Commissioner Sides voted for Commissioner Chamberlain as Chairman. 
 
Commissioners Chamberlain, Mitchell, Blount and Tadlock voted for 
Commissioner Tadlock as Chairman.   
 
On a 4-1 vote, Mr. Russell announced that Commissioner Tadlock would 
serve as the Chairman. 
 
Vice-Chairman: 
Mr. Russell then opened the floor to receive nominations for Vice-Chairman.    
 
Chairman Frank Tadlock nominated Commissioner Arnold Chamberlain for 
Vice-Chairman.   
 
Commissioner Blount nominated Chad Mitchell for Vice-Chairman. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved to close the nominations.  Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioners Chamberlain, Tadlock and Sides voted for Commissioner 
Chamberlain as Vice-Chairman. 
 
Commissioners Blount and Mitchell voted for Commissioner Mitchell as the 
Vice-Chairman. 
 
On a 3-2 vote, Mr. Russell announced that Commissioner Arnold 
Chamberlain would serve as Vice-Chairman. 
 
Chairman Tadlock thanked everyone for their support and pledged to do his 
best for the citizens of Rowan County. 
  
RECOGNITION OF GUS ANDREWS AND LEDA BELK: 
 
Chairman Tadlock asked Leda Belk to come forward.  Commissioners Blount 
and Mitchell were present with the Chairman during the presentations. 
 
Chairman Tadlock presented Ms. Belk with a plaque in honor of her service 
as a county commissioner from 2000-2004 from the citizens of Rowan County. 
 

 3



Chairman Tadlock then asked Clerk to the Board, Rita Foil, to come forward 
for an additional presentation to Ms. Belk. 
 
Ms. Foil said that it was and honor and privilege, on behalf of the citizens of 
Rowan County, to present Ms. Belk with a gift for her outstanding 
accomplishments as a county commissioner from 2000-2004.  
 
A round of applause followed for Ms. Belk. 
 
Chairman Tadlock then asked Gus Andrews to come forward and presented a 
plaque to Mr. Andrews on behalf of the citizens of Rowan County for his 
years of service as a county commissioner from 2000-2004 and serving as 
Chairman during 2004 and Vice-Chairman during 2003.  Upon receiving the 
plaque, retiring Commissioner Andrews humorously planted a kiss on 
Chairman Tadlock’s cheek.  This action was followed by laughter and a round 
of applause from the Board and the audience.   
 
Mr. Russell then presented Mr. Andrews with his gavel and a gift on behalf of 
the citizens of Rowan County in appreciation of his service.  
 
Retiring Commissioner Andrews said he would like to thank everyone and 
said the past four years had been a “tremendous learning experience” for 
him.  Commissioner Andrews challenged the new Commissioners on the 
“difficult task ahead.”  Commissioner Andrews said it had been a privilege 
and a pleasure to serve the citizens and he also recognized his wife, Barbara 
for her support.  
 
Retiring Commissioner Leda Belk said it had been a “real honor and a 
privilege” to serve the citizens of Rowan County.  Commissioner Belk felt the 
county had “come a long way in four years” and she challenged the Board to 
continue to grow in the region.  Ms. Belk said that Commissioners “pass 
through” and that it is the staff that needs to be commended keeps things 
going in the county. 
 
Chairman Tadlock then adjourned the meeting at 9:30 am and welcomed 
everyone in attendance to attend a reception held in the lobby of the 
Administration Building. 
 
Chairman Tadlock reconvened the meeting at 10:10 am. 
  
ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 
Chairman Tadlock asked if there were any additions to the agenda.   
 

 4



Commissioner Sides stated that he would like to make a motion that all 
Commissioner’s salaries be the same and that the difference in the current 
Chairman’s salary be placed in the General Fund to help lower taxes in the 
future. 
 
Mr. Russell stated that this would be an addition to the agenda, which would 
require a vote. 
 
Chairman Tadlock then stated that a motion would be required to add this 
item to the agenda. 
 
Commissioner Sides made a motion to add the above item to the agenda.  
Commissioner Chamberlain seconded and the motion passed on a 3/2 vote 
with Commissioners Blount and Tadlock voting against the motion. 
 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
Clerk to the Board Rita Foil, stated that there were to upcoming conferences 
in the areas listed below and asked Commissioners to let her know ASAP is 
they would like to attend and that information was provided in the 
Commissioners packets.   The two conferences are: 
 

1. Information on the upcoming Legislative Goals Conference 
2. Information on the upcoming NACo Legislative Conference 
 

CONSIDERATION OF THE CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Blount made a motion to approve the consent agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following: 
 

A. Approval of NCDOT request that Westen Acres Drive, Pond Court, 
Rogue Court and Westchester Drive be added to the State Secondary 
Road System for maintenance 

B. Approval of NCDOT request that Cedar Brook Drive be added to the 
State Secondary Road System for Maintenance  

C. Approval of NCDOT request that SR 2063 be added to the State 
Secondary Road System for maintenance 

D. Approval of NCDOT request that Dixie Lane be added to the State 
Secondary Road System for maintenance 

 5



E. Approval of NCDOT request that SR 2727 John Street and Sunny 
Heritage Drive be added to the State Secondary Road System for 
maintenance 

F. Approval of NCDOT request that Speedway Boulevard be added to the 
State Secondary Road System for maintenance 

G. Approval to set a public hearing for CUP-17-04 for a subdivision in 
CBI, request from Carl Albright  

H. Approval of Resolutions for various bank services 
I. Approval of Budget Amendments 
 

PRESENTATION ON ROWAN COUNTY’S DECEMBER EMPLOYEES 
OF THE MONTH: 
 
Chairman Tadlock stated that it was his honor to acknowledge the Rowan 
County Employee Appreciation Committee (EAC) as “Employees of the 
Month for December.”    
 
Chairman Tadlock asked Ms. Foil to call out the following names and 
Chairman Tadlock presented each employee with a certificate for their 
outstanding contributions and accomplishments during the 2004-year. 
 

 Joni Hess & Gregg Seaford, Administration  
 Rita Foil, County Manager’s Office 
 Jim Cowden, Cooperative Extension 
 Lori Roten, Department of Social Services 
  Brenda Foil, Elections 
 Julie Shinn, EMS; Lori Swaim, Environmental Services 
 Sandy Fisher, Finance 
 Pam Allman, Health Department 
 Jeff Hall, Library 
 Linda Clodfelter, Information Systems 
 Andrea Baucom, Parks & Recreation 
 Hazel Simpson, Register of Deeds; 
 John Sifford, Sheriff’s Department 
 Judy Crews, Senior Services 
 Staton Carter, Tax Assessor’s Office 
 Terry Myers, Tax Collector’s Office 
 Kristy Cowden, Telecommunications.    

 
Jim Cowden, Cooperation Extension Director and Co-Chair of the EAC came 
forward and presented comments about the committee and its 
accomplishments.   
 

 6



Mr. Cowden began by praising the team efforts of the committee during the 
Employee Appreciation Event that was held during the last three days of 
October.  Mr. Cowden highlighted the preparations and the success of the 
cookout, which was to thank employees “for a job well done.”   
 
A round of applause followed Mr. Cowden’s comments. 
 
INTRODUCTION OF NEW ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 
DIRECTOR: 
 
Mr. Russell introduced the Board to Kathryn Jolly, the new Environmental 
Services Director, succeeding Don Conner who retired on December 1, 2004. 
 
Mr. Russell informed the Board that Ms. Jolly comes to Rowan County from 
Polk County.  Mr. Russell asked Ms. Jolly to stand and jokingly said, “We’re 
not letting her speak too much the first 6 months.”  Mr. Russell described Ms. 
Jolly as a “great addition to our staff” and he welcomed her and said he 
looked forward to working with her. 
 
Ms. Jolly said it was an honor to be here. 
 
A round of applause followed the introduction. 
 
PRESENTATION TO THE ROWAN COUNTY EMS DIVISION FROM 
MEDCENTER AIR: 
 
Charlotte Menk and Keith Sebrinee, from Med Center Air, a helicopter 
service, which is supported by Carolinas Medical Center in Charlotte.  Ms. 
Menk and Mr. Sebrinee said that they wanted to recognize Rowan County 
Emergency Medical Services for its twenty (20) years of service to the citizens 
of Rowan County. 
 
Ms. Menk discussed MedCenter Air’s association with Rowan County 
Emergency Medical Services and said all of the current MedCenter Air 
believes that Rowan County is “truly blessed with a wonderful EMS agency.”  
Ms. Menk said Rowan County EMS provides the highest level of care to its 
patients.   
 
Ms. Menk presented a plaque to Beth Connell and thanked Rowan County 
EMS for its excellent emergency care contributions to Rowan County Citizens 
for the past (twenty) 20 years. 
 
Chairman Tadlock thanked Ms. Menk and a round of applause followed the 
presentation.  

 7



 
APPROVAL OF THE ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY EASEMENTS 
FOR THE NEW HIGH SCHOOL AND TECHNOLOGY BIDS: 
 
Jim Christy, from the Rowan Salisbury Schools, referred to the memo in the 
agenda packets and stated that negotiations were complete for the 
acquisition of a permanent easement and a temporary construction easement 
to the new high school site, contingent on the approval of the Board of 
Commissioners.   
 
Mr. Christy said the values listed were appraised values and he highlighted 
several added items. 
 
Mr. Christy reviewed the budget summary for property acquisition and 
requested Board approval in the amount of $693,190. 
 
Commissioner Blount moved for approval of the request, followed by a second 
from Commissioner Mitchell. 
 
Commissioner Sides referred to the $356,810 that was under budget and 
asked where these funds would go.  Mr. Christy responded that the funds 
were accounted for in the budget and the dollar figure the Board needed to 
focus on was $32,906,898, which is the “total program budget.”   
 
Commissioner Sides said he appreciated Mr. Christy’s position, but said he 
felt as a Commissioner he had the right to question the figures.  
Commissioner Sides said he would like to know “where that money is 
allocated.”  Mr. Christy said the funds had not been designated as a line item 
at this time. 
 
Mr. Russell clarified that the high school budget is “over budget to begin 
with.”  Mr. Russell said the savings of $356,810 would be applied to the 
“overage.”   
 
Commissioner Sides said anytime that funds are not used, his concern would 
be that those monies go back into the General Fund.  Commissioner Sides 
said he planned to privately meet with school officials to ask questions, in 
order to “be brought up to speed”. 
 
In response to a query from Commissioner Sides, Mr. Christy discussed the 
previous bids and explained how the market had escalated. 
 
Upon being put to a vote, the motion on the floor passed unanimously. 
 

 8



 
Mr. Christy presented the technology bid and said the package had been 
handled separately from the contracts of the general contractor in an effort to 
save additional dollars.   
 
Mr. Christy said $110,000 was budgeted with the bid being $107,742.  Mr. 
Christy pointed out that WynCom had submitted a lesser bid however the 
company did not include all of the equipment and was disqualified.  
 
Mr. Christy requested the Board’s approval for Ken-Nect Communications in 
the amount not to exceed $107,742. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell asked if the bid included “everything that you were 
trying to get accomplished.”  Mr. Christy responded that the bid was basically 
for the infrastructure for the West Elementary School.   
 
Commissioner Chamberlain asked if Wyncom was not capable of doing the 
work for which they did not bid on.  Mr. Watson responded by saying, “It had 
to be a subcontract and they were never able to pull that package together.” 
 
Commissioner Mitchell moved for approval of the request.  Commissioner 
Chamberlain seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
APPROVAL FOR SNIA REQUEST: 
Shane Stewart, from the Planning Department, explained that Tom Dailey 
had petitioned Planning Staff for a Special Non-residential Intensity 
Allocation (SNIA).  Mr. Stewart said the property is located on Performance 
Road and is located in Watershed II (Coddle Creek), which allows for 12 
percent built-upon for impervious coverage.  
 
Mr. Stewart said the Watershed Ordinance allows for the ability to take 10 
percent of the Coddle Creek watershed out and allocate 70 percent built-
upon.  Mr. Stewart said the petition must be presented to the Board. 
 
Mr. Stewart reviewed the site plan and said the request would have 28,400 
square feet of impervious coverage, leaving 53 percent of the parcel.   
 
Mr. Stewart said staff recommends approval based on the accompanying site 
plan. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain moved to approve the SNIA request.  
Commissioner Mitchell seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

 9



CONSIDERATION OF CHANGING THE MEETING DATE IN 
JANUARY: 
 
Rita Foil, Clerk to the Board, informed the Board that the second meeting for 
the month of January falls on January 17, 2005, which is Martin Luther 
King, Jr. Holiday and is observed by county employees.  Ms. Foil mentioned 
that it has been the practice of the Board to delay this meeting to the 
following day, which would be January 18, 2005 at 7:00 pm and not 8:00 pm 
as stated in the memo in the Commissioner’s packets. 
 
Ms. Foil requested consideration of the Board to change this date. 
 
Commissioner Blount made a motion to approve the request.  Commissioner 
Mitchell seconded and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell mentioned that he would not be able to attend the 
Board meeting on January 3rd due to being summoned for jury duty. 
 
The Board discussed the situation regarding Commissioner Mitchell being 
summoned for jury duty.  Commissioner Blount suggested that Commissioner 
Mitchell request a deferral. 
 
Commissioner Sides felt it would be best to go ahead and reschedule the 
Board meeting.  
 
Commissioner Sides moved to change the meeting to Tuesday, January 4, 
2005.  
 
Mr. Russell pointed out that jury duty would continue for the entire week and 
recommended that Commissioner Mitchell report for jury duty on January 3, 
2005 and then come to the Board meeting.  
 
Commissioner Sides removed his motion. 
 
Chairman Tadlock requested that Commissioner Mitchell let him know of his 
jury schedule as soon as possible. 
 
DISCUSSION OF THE SALARY OF COMMISSIONER 
 
Commissioner Sides felt that all Board members are elected as equals and he 
felt the Chairman should not be paid more than other Commissioners.  
Commissioner Sides said the position of Chairman is often a sought-after 
position.  
 

 10



Commissioner Sides said his motion was that the Chairman’s salary be 
reduced to the same salary as other Commissioners, with the additional 
monies going back into the General Fund.  Commissioner Chamberlain 
seconded the motion.   
 
Commissioner Blount said that having served as Chairman, he could say the 
Chairman “certainly earns more than his extra share of the money.”  
Commissioner Blount said the Chairman is the “face” of the Board and on 
many occasions must make presentations to groups; “many, many more 
things than an average Commissioner is required to do.”  Commissioner 
Blount referred to the responsibility of the Chairman in the NC General 
Statutes and said he respectfully disagreed with Commissioner Sides.  
 
Commissioner Tadlock questioned the procedures of other counties.  Mr. 
Russell reported that surveys show the Chairman is paid more in other 
counties. 
 
Commissioner Sides reiterated that “most of the time” the position is a 
“highly sought after position more because of the prestige than the money.”  
Commissioner Sides said that for this reason he did not believe the position 
should require an addition to the salary.  
 
Chairman Tadlock said if the reduction were a “big savings” he would work 
for less.  Chairman Tadlock said he didn’t have to “have more, or expect 
more, but I think it’s been a tradition not only in Rowan County but other 
counties as well.”    
 
Upon being put to a vote the motion failed on a 2/3 with Commissioners 
Chamberlain and Sides supporting the motion. 
 
DISCUSSION OF COMMISSIONER’S PLANNING RETREAT: 
 
Ms. Foil asked the Board for direction in planning the Commissioner’s 
Planning Retreat.  Ms. Foil stated that in the past, the Board has either gone 
out of town for the entire retreat; divided the retreat by holding public 
hearings locally and hearing from staff and other agencies and then going out 
of town to process and set goals; or stayed in Rowan County for the duration 
of the Retreat.  Ms. Foil reminded the Board that due to bad weather, last 
year’s retreat was altered. 
 
Ms. Foil also asked the Board to inform staff of any items that they would 
like to see on the agenda. 
 

 11



Commissioner Chamberlain said he preferred for the retreat to be held at the 
end of February and he also said he did not want the retreat to be held in 
Pinehurst. 
 
Chairman Tadlock mentioned that Feb 21st was the scheduled date for the 
second board meeting in February.  Chairman Tadlock suggested scheduling 
the week of the 21st for the retreat. 
 
Ms. Foil discussed past practices regarding the Board’s retreat, which 
included holding a public hearing on a Wednesday night, followed by 
presentations from staff and agencies the following day, followed by 
discussions, goal setting and closure to the retreat on the final day. 
 
Commissioner Sides mentioned that Wednesday nights are a church night for 
him and said he preferred that the Board not schedule meetings on 
Wednesday nights when possible.   
 
Commissioner Blount pointed out that not meeting on Wednesday would 
push the Board into the “wrap up meeting” on Sunday.   
 
Commissioner Mitchell suggested holding the public hearing on Tuesday, 
February 22nd, take Wednesday off and continue the retreat on Thursday and 
Friday, leaving Saturday, if necessary, to finalize any plans.   
 
Commissioner Sides made a motion to accept the suggested dates – February 
22nd, skip the 23rd and meet on the 24th and 25th with plans to wrap up the 
retreat on the 25th.      
 
Chairman Tadlock said the public hearing would be held on February 22nd at 
7:00 pm.   
 
In response to a query from Chairman Tadlock, Commissioner Sides said he 
would have no problem meeting for a half-day on Wednesday, February 23rd. 
 
Chairman Tadlock asked if Commissioner Sides would agree to make the 
above into a motion.  Commissioner Sides agreed and the motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Chamberlain and approved unanimously.  
 
Commissioner Sides said he preferred to hold the retreat in town for the 
convenience of those covering the meeting and due to the money that he felt 
could be saved. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain expressed concern that the planning retreat does 
not “end up as a budget session.”  

 12



By consensus the Board agreed to meet in Rowan County and Commissioner 
Blount suggested that the meetings be held in the J. Newton Cohen, Sr. 
Room. 
 
Commissioner Chamberlain moved to hold the retreat in the J. Newton 
Cohen, Sr. Room.  Commissioner Blount seconded the motion and the motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
Commissioner Blount moved to recruit the services of Larry Parks as 
Facilitator for the retreat.  Chairman Tadlock seconded the motion. 
 
Commissioner Sides questioned who is Larry Parks and also questioned the 
cost for the services of a facilitator. 
 
Mr. Russell explained that Larry Parks was a former employee for the 
Centralina Council of Governments (COG).  Mr. Russell said Mr. Parks had 
been the county’s facilitator for approximately 8-10 years.  Mr. Russell 
estimated the cost for Mr. Parks for two (2) days to be approximately $1200-
$1300.  
 
Commissioner Sides asked if there was a county staff member that could be 
trained as a facilitator. 
 
Chairman Tadlock pointed out that it might be one-sided to have a staff 
member as a facilitator.  Chairman Tadlock said Mr. Parks was very 
impartial and did an excellent job of keeping issues to the point.  Chairman 
Tadlock added that there would also be a cost to the county for a staff 
member to facilitate the retreat. 
 
Commissioner Sides agreed with Chairman Tadlock regarding the staff 
member.   Commissioner Sides asked if there was someone in Rowan County 
to facilitate, saying he preferred to spend county money in Rowan County as 
much as possible. 
 
Commissioner Blount added that an additional benefit of hiring Mr. Parks 
was his many years of working with COG.  Commissioner Blount said he did 
not doubt a facilitator could be hired in Rowan County be he did not feel the 
county could hire someone with the depth of knowledge of county government 
and the issues facing county government. 
 
Chairman Tadlock suggested acquiring the services of Mr. Parks due to the 
limited amount of time and recommended that the Board evaluate those 
services for the future. 
 

 13



Commissioner Sides said he would support the motion but would like to 
explore the avenue of utilizing the resources in Rowan County the future.    
 
The motion to hire Larry Parks as a facilitator for the retreat passed 
unanimously. 
 
Chairman Tadlock verified to Commissioners Chamberlain and Sides that 
“we do have plenty of time” to work in suggestions for the retreat. 
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS: 
Commissioner Blount moved to delay the board appointments in order to 
provide the new Commissioners time to review the appointment process. 
 
Commissioner Sides expressed appreciation for the motion and said he would 
like additional time to review the process.   
 
The motion was seconded by Chairman Tadlock and passed unanimously. 
 
Chairman Tadlock noted the numerous vacancies for the pending board 
appointments and requested that Commissioner Chamberlain work with staff 
in an effort to recruit board volunteers. 
 
Chairman Tadlock said he would work with the Commissioners as to 
suggestions for board liaison appointments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Chairman Tadlock opened the public comment period. 
 
There being no one present who wished to address the Board, Chairman 
Tadlock closed the public comment period. 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Chairman Tadlock opened the floor to entertain a motion for the Board to go 
into Executive Session. 
 
Commissioner Sides requested to remove one item from the list of issues to be 
discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Sides said, “Based on the 
Board of Commissioners Rules of Order, I cannot find where that item fits.”  
Commissioner Sides requested that the Personnel issue be removed from the 
agenda and from the Executive Session.  
 

 14



In response to a query from Commissioner Blount, Commissioner Sides said 
the purpose of the Personnel item to be discussed did not fit within the Rules 
of Order of the County Commissioners, of which he was provided a copy. 
 
Ms. Foil said the issue fell within the North Carolina General Statutes. 
 
Commissioner Sides said he read the Rules of Order and not the General 
Statutes.  Commissioner Sides stressed that in his opinion, the Personnel 
issue did not fit within the scope of Item #7 of the Rules of Order.  
Commissioner Sides then read a portion of Item #7 and said, “These are the 
rules that I was told we would be going by.”  Commissioner Sides requested 
that the item be removed from consideration until further notice. 
 
Chairman Tadlock asked Attorney John Holshouser if the Board was in order 
to go into Executive Session to discuss the proposed issues.  Attorney 
Holshouser responded by saying that “Personnel issues are always subject to 
Closed Session.”  Attorney Holshouser said he did not have a copy of the 
“rules” and said he was unaware as to what the Personnel issue was.    
 
Commissioner Sides felt there was no problem in tabling the issue.  
Commissioner Sides repeated that his motion was for the item to be removed 
from Executive Session until a future date.   
 
Commissioner Blount asked Commissioner Sides if the issue was a question 
of “appropriateness for it to be in Closed Session or you just don’t want to talk 
about it at this point?”  Commissioner Sides responded that it was a question 
of appropriateness to discuss the issue in Executive Session.  
 
Commissioner Blount said he felt the Attorney had addressed the fact that it 
was appropriate to discuss Personnel in Executive Session. 
 
Commissioner Blount pointed out that it was at “the Chairman’s assignment 
to rule on the Rule of Order at this point.” 
 
Chairman Tadlock called for a second to the motion and Commissioner 
Chamberlain requested that the motion be repeated. 
 
Commissioner Sides repeated the motion to be “to delay the discussion of the 
Personnel item in Executive Session that was scheduled for today, to some 
future date.”  
 
Commissioner Chamberlain seconded the motion based on the fact that the 
motion was to delay the discussion of that item, not the appropriateness. 
 

 15



Commissioner Blount asked if the Board members knew what the Personnel 
issue was.  Chairman Tadlock said it was his understanding that the Board 
did not have to address the particular issue, “just that it be a Personnel issue 
substantiates the need to conduct that discussion in Executive Session.”  
 
The motion failed on a 2/3 vote with Commissioners Sides and Chamberlain 
supporting the motion.  
 
At 11:10 am Commissioner Mitchell made a motion to go into Executive 
Session.  Commissioner Blount seconded the motion passed. 
 
Chairman Tadlock called for a short break before Executive Session. 

The Chairman brought the Board back into Open Session at 12:00 noon and 
called for a brief break. 
 
Chairman Tadlock called the Board back to order at 12:05 pm 
 
Commissioner Blount made a motion to ask staff to put on the next agenda to 
establishing a moratorium on radio towers in Rowan County. 
 
The motion died for a lack of a second. 
 
Commissioner Sides made a motion to defer any action on the above motion 
until the Board receives documentation from the attorney.  Commissioner 
Chamberlain seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a 4/1 vote with 
Commissioner Blount voting against the motion. 
 
Commissioner Sides made a motion, regarding the personnel issue of a 
request for an additional 6 months termination clause, to not extend the 
termination contract.  Commissioner Chamberlain seconded.  The motion 
failed on a 2/3 vote with Commissioners Blount, Mitchell and Tadlock voting 
against the motion. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell stated that, with the understanding that Tm Russell’s 
salary package reflects approximately: 

 $142,597.10 – Salary 
 $    6,811.22 – Health Insurance 
 $    4,277.91 – 401K 
 $    6,987.25 – Retirement 
 $    4,240.80 – Social Security 
 $       270.94 – Worker’s Compensation 
 $       600.00 – per month for travel expense 

Commissioner Mitchell then moved to extend Mr. Russell’s severance 
package by an additional 6 months to make it a total of 12 months in the 

 16



 17

event the Board chooses to terminate his contract without just cause.  
Commissioner Blount seconded the motion.  
 
The motion passed by a 3/2 vote with Commissioners Sides and Chamberlain 
voting against the motion. 
 
There being no further business, Chairman Tadlock adjourned the meeting at 
12:10 pm.  

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
     Rita K. Foil, CMC 
     Clerk to the Board 
 


